
1 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

JUNE 16, 2020 

 

CLOSED SESSION:    6:00 P.M. – 7:00 P.M. 

OPEN SESSION:             7:00 P.M. 

 
NOTICE: IN ORDER TO MINIMIZE THE SPREAD OF THE COVID-19 VIRUS, THIS MEETING WILL BE 
CONDUCTED PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE GOVERNOR'S EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20, 
WHICH SUSPENDED CERTAIN REQUIREMENTS OF THE BROWN ACT. 
 
WE ENCOURAGE ALL MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING VIA 
TELECONFERENCE BY CALLING (605) 468-8002, ACCESS CODE NUMBER 156811#.  ANY MEMBER OF 
THE PUBLIC PARTICIPATING VIA TELECONFERENCE WILL BE GIVEN THE OPPORTUNITY TO PROVIDE 
PUBLIC COMMENT. 
 
ADDITIONALLY, THE MEETING WILL BE STREAMED ON YOUTUBE LIVE 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCB_ZmQZIHELh-ECEPZ2VwZg 
 
IF YOU CHOOSE TO ATTEND THE COUNCIL MEETING IN PERSON, YOU WILL BE REQUIRED TO 
MAINTAIN APPROPRIATE SOCIAL DISTANCING, INCLUDING, MAINTAINING A SIX-FOOT DISTANCE 
BETWEEN YOURSELF AND OTHER INDIVIDUALS, AND WEAR A FACE COVERING. PLEASE NOTE, 
SEATING IS LIMITED. 
 
PURSUANT TO LIVINGSTON EXECUTIVE ORDER 2020-03, ALL MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC THE ARE 
REQUIRED TO WEAR A FACE COVERING WHILE INSIDE CITY FACILITIES. 
 
(Some Councilmembers may be participating in the meeting remotely via teleconferencing consistent 
with the Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20.) 
 
Notice is hereby given that the City Council will hold a Regular Meeting on June 16, 2020, at the City 

Council Chambers, 1416 C Street, Livingston, California or conducted pursuant to the provisions of 

the Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20. Assistance will be provided to those requiring 

accommodations for disabilities in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. 

Persons requesting accommodation should contact the Deputy City Clerk at least 24 hours prior to 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCB_ZmQZIHELh-ECEPZ2VwZg


2 
 
 

this meeting at (209) 394-8041, Ext. 121. Any writings or documents pertaining to an Open Session 

item provided to a majority of the members of the legislative body less than 72 hours prior to the 

meeting shall be made available for public inspection by email if requested. The Open Session will 

begin at 7:00 p.m. the Closed Session will be held in accordance with the state law prior to the Open 

Session beginning at 6:00 p.m. The Closed Session will be held at the City Council Chambers Located 

at 1416 C Street. The agenda shall be as follows:  

 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

 
1. Call to Order 

 

2. Roll Call 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

 
A “Closed” or “Executive” Session of the City Council or the Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency of the 

City of Livingston may be held in accordance with state law which may include, but is not limited to, the following 

types of items:  personnel matters, labor negotiations, security matters, providing instructions to real property 

negotiators, conference with legal counsel regarding pending litigation.  The Closed Session will be held in the City 

Council Chambers located at 1416 C Street, Livingston, California.  Any public comment on Closed Session items 

will be taken before the Closed Session.  Any required announcements or discussion of Closed Session items or actions 

following the Closed Session will be made in the City Council Chambers, 1416 C Street, Livingston, California. 

 

 

1.   Conference with Labor Negotiator 

(Government Code Section 54957.6) 

Labor Negotiator: Jose Antonio Ramirez, City Manager 

All Represented and Unrepresented City Employees 

 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

 
CALL TO ORDER       Next Resolution No.:  2020-33 

                        Next Ordinance No.:  643 

 Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

 Moment of Silence – First Responders and Military Members. 

       

 Roll Call. 

  

 Closed Session Announcements.  

   

 Changes to the Agenda. 

 

 

 

 

 



3 
 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS AND REPORTS 

 

 Supervisor Rodrigo Espinoza Announcements and Reports. 

 

 City Staff Announcements and Reports.  

 

 City Manager Announcements and Reports. 

  

 City Council Members’ Announcements and Reports. 

 

 Mayor’s Announcements and Reports. 

 

AWARDS, PRESENTATIONS, PROCLAMATIONS  
 

 1. Presentation by Joel Aguilar: Larger than Life Pop-Up Art in Livingston. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

 2. Proceedings Under the Landscape and Lighting Act of 1972, California Streets and Highways 

Code 22500, et. seq., for the Approval to Levy Annual Assessments for the Citywide 

Consolidated Landscape Maintenance Assessment District No. 1 and Confirming Assessments 

for Fiscal Year 2020/2021. 

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS     

 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WISHING TO ADDRESS THE CITY COUNCIL WILL BE GIVEN THE SAME TIME 
ALLOTMENT FOR COMMENTS (3 MINUTES) AS NORMALLY ALLOWED FOR MEETINGS SUBJECT TO THE 
PROVISIONS OF EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20 
  
This section of the agenda allows members of the public to address the City Council on any item NOT otherwise on 

the agenda.  Members of the public, when recognized by the Mayor, should come forward to the lectern, and identify 

themselves.  Comments are normally limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with State Open Meeting Laws, no 

action will be taken by the City Council this evening.  For items which are on the agenda this evening members of 

the public will be provided an opportunity to address the City Council as each item is brought up for discussion. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 
Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine or non-controversial and will be enacted by one vote, unless 

separate action is requested by the City Manager or City Council Member.  There will be no separate discussion of 

these items unless members of the City Council or City Manager request that specific items be removed. 

 

 3. Approval of Warrant Register Dated June 11, 2020. 

 

 4. Approval of Minutes of Meeting Held on May 5, 2020. 

 

 5. Resolution Authorizing Application for the State of California Local Early Action Planning 

(LEAP) Grant Program. 

 

 6. Resolution Confirming Judgment and Establishing Special Assessment on Property for Unpaid 

Charges.  
 



4 
 
 

DISCUSSION AND POTENTIAL ACTION ITEMS 

 

 7. Resolution of the Council of the City of Livingston Approving an Order Directing Businesses in 

Operation to Adopt and Implement State COVID-19 Safety Protocols, Including Industry 

Specific Guidelines as Established by the State, and Requiring all Individuals Within the City to 

Wear Face Coverings Before Entering any Indoor Facility Besides their Residence, Any Enclosed 

Open Space, or while Outdoors when the Person is Unable to Maintain a Six-Foot Distance From 

Another Person at All Times.  

 

 8. Resolution Ratifying the Continued Existence of a Local Emergency in the City of Livingston 

Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic. 

 

 9. Resolution of the Council of the City of Livingston Approving of an Administrative Directive 

Regarding the Disposition of Surplus Property.  

 

 10. Resolution Supporting the Expansion of the Altamont Corridor Express (ACE) Train to Merced 

County and Making the Case for a Train Stop in Downtown Livingston (City). 

 

 11. Resolution Continuing the 2020/21 Fiscal Year Budget and Authorizing the City Manager to 

Continue Making Required Expenditures to Meet Current or Immediate Financial Obligations 

until the 2020/2021 Fiscal Year Budget is Adopted.  

 
AJOURNMENT 





































































































































































































































































































































1 

 

STAFF REPORT 
 

AGENDA ITEM: RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON 
APPROVING AN ORDER DIRECTING BUSINESSES IN OPERATION 
TO ADOPT AND IMPLEMENT STATE COVID-19 SAFETY 
PROTOCOLS, INCLUDING INDUSTRY SPECIFIC GUIDELINES AS 
ESTABLISHED BY THE STATE, AND REQUIRING ALL INDIVIDUALS 
WITHIN THE CITY TO WEAR FACE COVERINGS BEFORE ENTERING 
ANY INDOOR FACILITY BESIDES THEIR RESIDENCE, ANY 
ENCLOSED OPEN SPACE, OR WHILE OUTDOORS WHEN THE 
PERSON IS UNABLE TO MAINTAIN A SIX-FOOT DISTANCE FROM 
ANOTHER PERSON AT ALL TIMES 

 
MEETING DATE: June 16, 2020 
 
PREPARED BY: Jose Antonio Ramirez, City Manager  
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2020-____, of the Council of the City of Livingston Ordering all 
businesses in operation to adopt and implement state COVID-19 safety protocols, including 
industry specific guidelines as established by the state, and requiring all individuals within the 
City to wear face coverings before entering any indoor facility besides their residence, any 
enclosed open space, or while outdoors when the person is unable to maintain a six-foot 
distance from another person at all times.  
 
BACKGROUND:  
 

The Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19”) is a severe respiratory disease first detected in Wuhan, 
Hubei Province, People’s Republic of China, on December 31, 2019.  COVID-19 may result in 
serious illness or death, and is easily transmissible from person to person.  As of March 13, 
2020, it has been reported that COVID-19 has spread to over 90 countries, including the United 
States, and is spreading to a growing number of California cities and counties. 
 
World Health Organization officials report that sustained human-to-human transmission of the 
virus is occurring.  Transmission from asymptomatic individuals has been documented.  
Suspected community transmission of the virus is occurring in the United States.  Although the 
majority of individuals infected with COVID-19 recover from the disease without special 
treatment, there is significant potential for serious infection and death. 
 
On March 17, 2020, at a Special Meeting, the Livingston City Council found that the conditions 
related to the COVID-19 pandemic were of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property 
within the territorial limits of the City and thus proclaimed a local emergency pursuant to 
Municipal Code Chapter 1-20 and Government Code section 8630. 
 
In response to this pandemic, on March 19, 2020, the Governor of California issued Executive 
Order N-33-20 ordering all individuals within the State of California to stay home or at their place 



2 

 

of residence, except as needed to maintain continuity of operation of the federal critical 
infrastructure sectors, critical government services, schools, childcare, and construction.  In 
accordance with the Governor’s Executive Order N-33-20, the Health Officer of the County of 
Merced issued an order on March 20, 2020, ordering all individuals currently living within the 
County of Merced to shelter at their place of residence.  
 
Recently, federal, state and local health authorities have recommended that medical workers 
and first responders wear, where available, hospital grade masks, such as surgical masks or 
N95 respirators.  On April 1, 2020, the California Department of Public Health issued guidance 
recommending the use of face coverings while in public, and on April 4, 2020, the Center for 
Diseases Control recommended wearing cloth face coverings in public settings where other 
social distancing measures are difficult to maintain (e.g., grocery stores and pharmacies), 
especially in areas of significant community-based transmission of COVID-19. 
  
The Merced County Department of Public Health has also issued face covering guidance, which 
stated that: “All residents are strongly encouraged to wear a cloth face covering whenever they 
must be out of the home to reduce the spread of the illness from infected individuals that have 
no symptoms.”   
 
On April 17, 2020, the City Manager, in his capacity as Director of the Disaster Council of the 
City of Livingston, issued Emergency Executive Order 2020-03, directing all essential 
businesses to adopt and implement social distancing and sanitation protocols, and requiring all 
individuals within the City to wear face coverings before entering any indoor facility besides their 
residence, any enclosed open space, or while outdoors when the person is unable to maintain a 
six-foot distance from another person at all times.  Order 2020-03 was ratified by the City 
Council by Resolution 2020-26, on April 21, 2020, and expired under its own terms on May 31, 
2020. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Due to the outbreak of the COVID-19 virus in the general public, there is a public health 
emergency throughout the County. Making the problem worse, some individuals who contract 
the COVID-19 virus have no symptoms or have mild symptoms, which means they may not be 
aware they carry the virus. Because even people without symptoms can transmit the disease, 
and because evidence shows the disease is easily spread, gatherings can result in the 
transmission of the virus. The scientific evidence shows that at this stage of the emergency, it is 
essential to slow virus transmission as much as possible to protect the most vulnerable and to 
prevent the health care system from being overwhelmed. One proven way to slow the 
transmission is to limit interactions among people to the greatest extent practicable.  
 
It has also become known that COVID-19 is spread through respiratory droplets that are 
produced when an infected person coughs, sneezes, or talks.  These droplets have the ability to 
land in the mouths or noses of others who are nearby and can also be inhaled into their lungs. 
COVID-19 has been shown to attach to a variety of surfaces for prolonged periods of time. If 
properly worn and cleaned, cloth face coverings have the potential to greatly slow the 
transmission and spread of COVID-19. 
 
Based upon state and county public health information, even a small reduction in COVID-19 
transmissions could make a significant difference in the demand and strain on the healthcare 
system in Merced County and neighboring jurisdictions, which can ultimately save lives. 



3 

 

 
Government Code section 8634 and Livingston Municipal Code section 1-20-3(B) authorize the 
City Council, during a declared Local Emergency, the authority to promulgate orders and 
regulations necessary to provide for the protection of life and property.  Additionally, Livingston 
Municipal Code section 1-20-9(B) provides authorization to the City Manager, acting as the 
Director of the Disaster Council of the City of Livingston to make, issue and enforce orders, 
rules, and regulations reasonably related to the protection of life and/or property.  
 
The proposed Order requires all businesses in operation in accordance with stage 2.5 of the 
California Resiliency Roadmap (“Covered Businesses”), to adopt and implement the five state 
COVID-19 safety requirements, as well as comply with state industry specific guidelines, which 
are outlined at https://covid19.ca.gov/industry-guidance/.  Businesses which members of the 
public allowed to enter, are required to adhere to social distancing and sanitation protocols as 
stipulated by the state.  
 
Additionally, all persons in the City are required to wear face coverings before entering any 
indoor facility besides their residence, any enclosed open space, or while outdoors when the 
person is unable to maintain a six-foot distance from another person at all times. Face coverings 
are defined as any fabric or cloth that covers the mouth and nose, and can be made using 
household items, including scarves, bandanas, t-shirts, sweatshirts, towels, or other fabric. 
 
Any violation of the Order, may be pursued as an administrative fine, infraction, or a 
misdemeanor in the City’s sole and absolute discretion, pursuant to Government Code section 
8665 and Livingston Municipal Code section 1-20-26. 
 
The Order will become effective immediately upon approval by the City Council, although 
penalties will not be assessed for violations of the Order until June 26, 2020, to allow for an 
educational and compliance period.  The Order will expire on July 31, 2020, unless otherwise 
amended, repealed, or extended by the City Council. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 

1. Resolution No. 2020-____, of the Council of the City of Livingston approving an order 

directing all businesses in operation to adopt and implement state COVID-19 safety 

protocols, including industry specific guidelines as established by the state, and requiring 

all individuals within the City to wear face coverings before entering any indoor facility 

besides their residence, any enclosed open space, or while outdoors when the person is 

unable to maintain a six-foot distance from another person at all times.  

2. Order of the City Council of the City of Livingston and the City Manager in his capacity 

as the Director of the Disaster Council of the City of Livingston. 

 

https://covid19.ca.gov/industry-guidance/


1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020- 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON APPROVING AN ORDER 
DIRECTING BUSINESSES IN OPERATION TO ADOPT AND IMPLEMENT STATE COVID-19 
SAFETY PROTOCOLS, INCLUDING INDUSTRY SPECIFIC GUIDELINES AS ESTABLISHED 
BY THE STATE, AND REQUIRING ALL INDIVIDUALS WITHIN THE CITY TO WEAR FACE 
COVERINGS BEFORE ENTERING ANY INDOOR FACILITY BESIDES THEIR RESIDENCE, 
ANY ENCLOSED OPEN SPACE, OR WHILE OUTDOORS WHEN THE PERSON IS UNABLE 

TO MAINTAIN A SIX-FOOT DISTANCE FROM ANOTHER PERSON AT ALL TIMES 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19”), a severe acute respiratory illness 
caused by a novel (new) coronavirus was first detected in Wuhan, Hubei Province, People’s 
Republic of China and the first case was reported on December 31, 2019, in China; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Merced County Public Health Department Operations Center was opened 
January 27, 2020, in order to prepare for the potential of COVID-19 in and around our community; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, on January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization (“WHO”) declared the COVID-
19 outbreak a Public Health Emergency of International Concern, and on January 31, 2020, the 
United States Secretary of Health and Human Services declared a Public Health Emergency to 
aid the nation in responding to COVID-19; and 
 
WHEREAS, on February 26, 2020, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (“CDC”) 
confirmed the first case of local person-to-person transmission of COVID-19 in the United States, 
and this case raised the possibility of community transmission occurring in the general public; and  
 
WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, Governor Gavin Newsom proclaimed a state of emergency to 
exist in California; and 
 
WHEREAS, on March 11, 2020, the WHO characterized COVID-19 as a pandemic; and 
 
WHEREAS, on March 12, 2020, Governor Gavin Newsom issued Executive Order N-25-20 
further enhancing California’s ability to respond to the COVID-19 pandemic; directing Californians 
to follow public health directives, including canceling large gatherings of more than two hundred 
and fifty (250) people, removing the waiting period for unemployment and disability insurance for 
Californians who lose work as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak, and allowing local and state 
legislative bodies to hold meetings via conference calls while still meeting state transparency 
requirements; and  
 
WHEREAS, on March 13, 2020, the President of the United States declared a national emergency 
in response to COVID-19; and  
 
WHEREAS, on March 13, 2020, the Health Officer for the County of Merced declared that the 
imminent introduction of COVID-19 to Merced County was a threat to the public health and 
declared a local health emergency; and   
 
WHEREAS, on March 13, 2020, the Merced County Director of Emergency Services proclaimed 
a local emergency to exist throughout Merced County; and 



2 
 

 
WHEREAS, on March 14, 2020, the City of Livingston (the “City”) activated its Emergency 
Operation Center to support ongoing emergency actions in response to the spread of COVID-19; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, the Livingston City Council, proclaimed the existence of a local 
emergency pursuant to Section 8634 of the California Government Code and Section 1-20-5 of 
the Livingston Municipal Code; and  
 
WHEREAS, on March 25, 2020, the Director of the Disaster Council of the City of Livingston 
adopted an emergency order requiring residents to comply with the County Order and establishing 
penalties for violations of the Order; and 
 
WHEREAS, on March 26, 2020, the Livingston City Council ratified the proclamation of local 
emergency made by the Director of the City’s Disaster Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, in response to social distancing guidance issued by the CDC, the California 
Department of Public Health (“CDPH”) and the Merced County Department of Public Health, the 
City canceled all social gatherings (events, activities, programs, and gatherings) in the City in 
accordance with the guidance and directives of public health authorities until further notice; and  
  
WHEREAS, in response to social distancing guidance issued by the CDC, the CDPH and the 
Merced County Department of Public Health, and to protect the health and safety of the City 
workforce, and all members of the community, the City closed Livingston City Hall, Livingston 
Police Department Building, Livingston Fire Station, and all other Administrative Offices of the 
City to the public until further notice; and   
 
WHEREAS, in response to social distancing guidance issued by the CDC, the CDPH, and the 
Merced County Department of Public Health, and to protect the health and safety of all members 
of the community, the City closed all City parks to the public until further notice; and  
 
WHEREAS, on March 19, 2020, California Governor, Gavin Newsom, issued Executive Order N-
33-20 directing all residents of the State of California to heed directives issued by the State Health 
Officer on the same date instructing all Californians to stay home except as needed to maintain 
continuity of operations of the federal critical infrastructure sectors; and  
  
WHEREAS, on March 20, 2020, the Merced County Department of Public Health issued a Health 
Officer Stay at Home Order directing all individuals living in the County of Merced to stay at home 
or at their place of residence except that they may leave to provide or receive certain essential 
services or engage in certain essential activities and work for essential businesses and 
governmental services; directing all businesses and governmental agencies to cease non-
essential operations at physical locations in the County of Merced; prohibiting all non-essential 
gatherings of any number of individuals; and ordering cessation of all nonessential travel (“Stay 
at Home Order”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the CDC, the CDPH, and the Merced County Department of Public Health have all 
issued public health recommendations to the community including but not limited to staying home 
if sick, social distancing from non-family members, canceling or postponing events and 
gatherings, and taking other precautions to protect public health and prevent transmission of this 
communicable virus; and  
  



3 
 

WHEREAS, federal, state and local health authorities have recommended that medical workers 
and first responders wear, where available, hospital grade masks, such as surgical masks or N95 
respirators; and  
 
WHEREAS, on April 1, 2020, the CDPH issued guidance recommending the use of face 
coverings while in public; and 
 
WHEREAS, on April 4, 2020, the CDC recommended wearing cloth face coverings in public 
settings where other social distancing measures are difficult to maintain (e.g., grocery stores and 
pharmacies), especially in areas of significant community-based transmission of COVID-19; and  
  
WHEREAS, on April 7, 2020, the Merced County Department of Public Health issued the following 
guidance: “All residents are strongly encouraged to wear a cloth face covering whenever they 
must be out of the home to reduce the spread of the illness from infected individuals that have no 
symptoms.  This is in addition to the continued requirement of at least 6 feet of social distancing.”  
“Cloth face covering is defined as any cloth that can be used to cover as tightly as possible the 
mouth and nose of the wearer. It is NOT a surgical mask or respirator (which must be reserved 
for health care professionals in their work treating COVID-19 patients). It should be washed at 
least daily and the wearer should wash their hands before putting it on and after taking it off. 
Additionally, the wearer should avoid touching the covering as much as possible while wearing 
it;” and 
 
WHEREAS, on April 8, 2020, the Merced County Department of Public Health issued an 
enhanced Health Officer Order. This Order supersedes the March 20, 2020 Order of the Health 
Officer, directing all individuals to stay at home. This Order clarifies, strengthens, and extends 
certain terms of the prior Stay at Home Order to increase social distancing and reduce person-to-
person contact in order to further slow the transmission of COVID-19; and 
 
WHEREAS, on May 8, 2020, the Merced County Department of Public Health issued a revised 
Health Officer Order which provided additional guidance for individuals, organizations, and 
businesses, as the County prepared to reopen sectors of the economy in accordance with the 
Governor’s California Resiliency Roadmap; and 
 
WHEREAS, on May 26, 2020 and June 8, 2020, the Merced County Department of Public Health 
issued guidance, which moved the County into stage 2.5 of the Governor’s California Resiliency 
Roadmap.  Under phase 2.5, more sectors of the economy are permitted to reopen, but under 
modified circumstances which impose specific requirements aimed and slowing and/or preventing 
the spread of COVID-19; and  
 
WHEREAS, it has become widely understood that COVID-19 is spread through respiratory 
droplets that are produced when an infected person coughs, sneezes, or talks.  These droplets 
have the ability to land in the mouths or noses of others who are nearby and can also be inhaled 
into their lungs. COVID-19 has been shown to attach to a variety of surfaces for prolonged periods 
of time. If properly worn and cleaned, cloth face coverings have the potential to greatly slow the 
transmission and spread of COVID-19; and   
 
WHEREAS, the increasing scientific evidence is showing that the use of face coverings coupled 
with social distancing and diligent hand washing, can greatly minimize and slow the transmission 
and spread of COVID-19, and thus far, these practices have been shown to be the most effective 
methods in combatting COVID-19; and 
 



4 
 

WHEREAS, even a small reduction in COVID-19 transmissions could make a significant 
difference in the demand and strain on the healthcare system in Merced County and neighboring 
jurisdictions; and 
 
WHEREAS, in the interest of public health and safety, as affected by the emergency caused by 
the spread of COVID-19 in our community, it is necessary to exercise the City Council’s authority 
pursuant to Section 8634 of the California Government Code, and Sections 1-20-3(B) and 1-20-
9(B) of the Livingston Municipal Code, to issue the following order related to the protection of life 
and property within the City of Livingston.  

  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Livingston 

hereby orders the following, attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Order”). 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Livingston authorizes 

and directs the City Manager, in his capacity as Director of the Disaster Council of the City of 
Livingston, to implement and enforce the provisions of the Order. 

 
Passed and adopted this 16th day of June, 2020, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT:   
 
 
 

____________________________ 
Gurpal Samra, Mayor 
of the City of Livingston 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and adopted 
at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Livingston this 16 th day of June, 2020.  
 
 

______________________________ 
        Anthony Silva, City Clerk 

                   of the City of Livingston 
 
 
 

 

3541508.3  



 
 

ORDER OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON AND THE CITY MANAGER 
IN HIS CAPACITY AS THE DIRECTOR OF THE DISASTER COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

LIVINGSTON 
 

DATE OF ORDER: JUNE 16, 2020 
 

ORDER 
 

This Order is issued under the authority granted by Government Code section 8634, 
Livingston Municipal Code sections 1-20-7 and 1-20-9. 

In conformance with, and where not otherwise superseded by the Executive Order N-33-
20 issued by the Governor of the State of California and guidance from the CDC, CDPH, and the 
May 8, 2020 Order, May 26. 2020 and June 8, 2020, Guidances of the Merced County Health 
Officer, this Order specifies and Orders as follows: 

1. All individuals, businesses, entities, and government agencies in the City of 
Livingston are required to follow the provisions of the May 8, 2020 Order, and May 26, 2020 and 
June 8, 2020 Guidances of the Merced County Health Officer.  

 
2. All businesses that are in operation in accordance with the May 8, 2020 Order, and 

May 16, 2020 and June 8, 2020 Guidances of the Merced County Health Department, must meet 
and implement the five (5) state COVID-19 safety requirements: 

 
a. Perform a detailed risk assessment and implement a site-specific protection plan; 
 
b. Train employees on how to limit the spread of COVID-19, including how to screen 

themselves for symptoms and to stay home if they have symptoms;  
 
c. Implement individual control measures and screenings; 
 
d. Implement disinfecting protocols; and 
 
e. Implement physical distancing guidelines. 
 
Additionally, each business shall follow industry specific guidelines established by the 

state, which can be found at https://covid19.ca.gov/industry-guidance/. 
 
3. All persons are required to wear face coverings before entering any indoor facility 

besides their residence, any enclosed open space, or while outdoors when the person is unable 
to maintain a six (6) foot distance from another person at all times.  

 
a. Face coverings shall mean any fabric or cloth that covers the mouth and nose, and 

can be made using household items, including scarves, bandanas, t-shirts, sweatshirts, towels, 
or other fabric. 

 
b. Pursuant to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention guidelines, face 

coverings should not be placed on young children younger than two (2) years of age, anyone who 

https://covid19.ca.gov/industry-guidance/
mcisneros
Typewritten text
d

mcisneros
Typewritten text
            EXHIBIT A



has trouble breathing or is unconscious, incapacitated, or otherwise unable to remove the face 
covering without assistance. 

 
c. For further guidance on face coverings, please refer to: 
 

 https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/diy-cloth-face-
coverings.html  
 
and 
 

 https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/Face-Coverings-
Guidance.aspx  

 
4. This Order shall be effective immediately and will remain in effect until July 31, 

2020, unless it is rescinded, superseded, amended or extended by the City Council of the City of 
Livingston.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City shall not impose penalties for violations of this 
Order until Friday, June 26, 2020. 

5. This Order is issued based on evidence of increasing transmission of COVID-19 
both within the City of Livingston and worldwide, scientific evidence regarding the most effective 
approach to slow transmission of communicable diseases generally and COVID-19 specifically, 
as well as best practices as currently known and available to protect the public from the risk of 
spread of or exposure to COVID-19. 

6. This Order is intended to reduce the likelihood of exposure to COVID-19, thereby 
slowing the spread of COVID-19 in this community. This Order is issued to prevent circumstances 
often present in Covered Businesses that may exacerbate the spread of COVID-19, such as: (1) 
the increased likelihood that retail, restaurant, and banking transactions attract people from a 
broad geographic area; (2) the prolonged time period in which large numbers of people are in 
close proximity; and (3) difficulty ensuring that such persons (patrons and employees) follow 
adequate social distancing. 

7. This Order is intended to address the strain upon the health care system from the 
effects of the COVID-19 virus. Similarly, this Order is intended to reduce the likelihood of exposure 
to COVID19, thereby slowing the community spread of COVlD-19. 

8. This Order is issued in accordance with, and incorporates by reference, the: March 
4, 2020 Proclamation of a State Emergency issued by Governor Gavin Newsom and subsequent 
executive orders; the March 13, 2020 Declaration of Local Health Emergency by the Merced 
County Department of Health and subsequent orders; the March 17, 2020 Proclamation by the 
City Council of the existence of a local emergency pursuant to Section 8630 of the California 
Government Code; the March 26, 2020 action by the Livingston City Council ratifying the 
Proclamation of a Local Emergency made by the Director of the Disaster Council of the City of 
Livingston and subsequent actions declaring the continued existence of a Local Emergency in 
the City of Livingston; the April 1, 2020 guidance from the CPDH recommending the use of face 
coverings while in public; and the April 4, 2020 guidance issued by the CDC recommending 
wearing cloth face coverings in public settings where other social distancing measures are difficult 
to maintain (e.g., grocery stores and pharmacies); and the May 8, 2020 Order issued by the 
Merced County Health Officer recommending the use of a cloth face covering when leaving the 
residences for essential activities.  

 

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/diy-cloth-face-coverings.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/diy-cloth-face-coverings.html
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/Face-Coverings-Guidance.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/Face-Coverings-Guidance.aspx


9. Violation of this Order is a crime and may also be pursued as an administrative 
fine, an infraction, or a misdemeanor, in the City's sole and absolute discretion. (California 
Government Code section 8665, Livingston Municipal Code section 1-20-26). 

 
10. Copies of this Order shall promptly be: (1) posted at the City of Livingston City Hall 

located at 1416 C Street, Livingston, CA 95334; (2) posted on the City of Livingston’s website 
(www.livingstoncity.com); and (3) provided to any member of the public requesting a copy of this 
Order. 

 
11. If any provision of this Order or the application thereof to any person or 

circumstance is held to be invalid, the remainder of the Order, including the application of such 
part or provision to other persons or circumstances, shall not be affected and shall continue in full 
force and effect. To this end, the provisions of this Order are severable.  
 
 
IT IS SO ORDERED:  
 
 
 
_____________________________________   Dated:________________ 
Gurpal Samra, Mayor 
of the City of Livingston 
 
 
 
_____________________________________   Dated:________________ 
Jose Antonio Ramirez 
City Manager & Director of Disaster Council 
City of Livingston 

 



1 

 

STAFF REPORT 
 

AGENDA ITEM: RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE CONTINUED EXISTENCE OF A 
LOCAL EMERGENCY IN THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON DUE TO THE 
COVID-19 PANDEMIC 

 
MEETING DATE: June 16, 2020 
 
PREPARED BY: Jose Antonio Ramirez, City Manager  
 
REVIEWED BY: Jose M. Sanchez, City Attorney  
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2020-____, of the Council of the City of Livingston Ratifying the Continued 
Existence of a Local Emergency in the City of Livingston Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic.  
 
BACKGROUND:  
 

The Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19”) is a severe respiratory disease first detected in Wuhan, 
Hubei Province, People’s Republic of China, on December 31, 2019.  COVID-19 may result in 
serious illness or death, and is easily transmissible from person to person.  As of March 13, 
2020, it has been reported that COVID-19 has spread to over 90 countries, including the United 
States, and is spreading to a growing number of California cities and counties. 
 
World Health Organization officials report that sustained human-to-human transmission of the 
virus is occurring.  Transmission from asymptomatic individuals has been documented.  
Suspected community transmission of the virus is occurring in the United States.  Although the 
majority of individuals infected with COVID-19 recover from the disease without special 
treatment, there is significant potential for serious infection and death. 
 
On March 17, 2020, at a special meeting, the City of Livingston City Council found that the 
conditions related to the COVID-19 pandemic were of extreme peril to the safety of persons and 
property within the territorial limits of the City and thus proclaimed a local emergency pursuant 
to Municipal Code Chapter 1-20 and Government Code section 8630. 
 
In response to this pandemic, on March 19, 2020, the Governor of California issued Executive 
Order N-33-20 ordering all individuals within the State of California to stay home or at their place 
of residence, except as needed to maintain continuity of operation of the federal critical 
infrastructure sectors, critical government services, schools, childcare, and construction.  In 
accordance with the Governor’s Executive Order N-33-20, the Health Officer of the County of 
Merced issued an order on March 20, 2020, ordering all individuals currently living within the 
County of Merced to shelter at their place of residence.  
 
On May 8, 2020, the Merced County Health Officer issued a revised local health Order, which 
allowed for specified businesses to re-open with modified operations and requiring specific 
safety measures.  The May 8th Order reiterated the strong recommendation that all individuals 



2 

 

wear a face covering when social distancing is not feasible, such as grocery stores or other 
businesses. 
 
On May 26, 2020 and June 8, 2020, the Merced County Health Officer issued guidelines for 
allowing more sectors of the economy to reopen under modified restrictions, moving the County 
into stage 2.5 of California’s Resilience Roadmap.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The COVID-19 pandemic is continuing to threaten the health and safety of the City’s residents.  
As of June 9, 2020, California has 133,489 confirmed cases of COVID-19 infections, and 4,679 
COVID-19 related deaths, and within Merced County, there have been 387 confirmed COVID-
19 cases and 7 COVID-19 related deaths. 
 
Even though more sectors of the economy are reopening in the County pursuant to the 
Governor’s California Resilience Roadmap, those sectors are reopening under modified 
restrictions which are aimed at limiting and slowing potential transmissions of COVID-19.  
Additionally, there is still clear evidence that the COVID-19 virus remains a serious public health 
emergency throughout the state.  Further compounding the public health emergency, is that 
some individuals who contract the COVID-19 virus have no symptoms or have mild symptoms, 
which means they may not be aware they are carriers of the virus. Because even people without 
symptoms can transmit the disease, and because evidence shows the disease is easily spread, 
gatherings can result in the mass transmission of the virus. The growing scientific evidence 
shows that, until a viable vaccine or other medical cure for COVID-19, it is essential to slow 
virus transmission as much as possible to protect the most vulnerable and to prevent the health 
care system from being overwhelmed.  
 
Accordingly, Staff recommends the City Council ratify the continued existence of a local 
emergency in the City due to the COVID-19 Pandemic.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 

1. Resolution No. 2020-____, of the Council of the City of Livingston Ratifying the 

Continued Existence of a Local Emergency in the City of Livingston Due to the  

COVID-19 Pandemic  

 



Page 1 of 2  

RESOLUTION NO. 2020- 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON RATIFYING THE 
CONTINUED EXISTENCE OF A LOCAL EMERGENCY IN THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON DUE TO 

THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC 
 

WHEREAS, international, national, state and local health and governmental authorities are 
responding to an outbreak of respiratory disease caused by a novel coronavirus named “SARS-
CoV-2,” and the disease it causes has been named “coronavirus disease 2019,” abbreviated 
COVID-19 (“COVID-19”); and 

WHEREAS, COVID-19 is easily transmissible from person to person, and is spreading to a 
growing number of California cities and counties; and 

WHEREAS, on January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization (“WHO”) declared COVID-19 a 
Public Health Emergency of International Concern; and  

WHEREAS, on January 31, 2020, the Secretary of the United States Department of Health and 
Human Services declared a public health emergency for the entire United States to aid the nation’s 
healthcare community in responding to COVID-19; and   
 
WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, the Governor of California proclaimed a state of emergency exists 
in California regarding COVID-19; and  
 
WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, at a special meeting, the City of Livingston (the “City”) City 
Council found that the conditions related to the COVID-19 pandemic were of extreme peril to the 
safety of persons and property within the territorial limits of the City and thus proclaimed a local 
emergency pursuant to Municipal Code Chapter 1-20 and Government Code section 8630; and 
 
WHEREAS, on March 19, 2020, the Governor of California issued Executive Order N-33-20 
ordering all individuals within the State of California to stay home or at their place of residence, 
except as needed to maintain continuity of operation of the federal critical infrastructure sectors, 
critical government services, schools, childcare, and construction; and  
 
WHEREAS, on March 26, 2020, in order to carry out Executive Order N-33-20, the Merced County 
Health Officer ordered all individuals currently living within the County of Merced to shelter at their 
place of residence (the “County Order”); and  
 
WHEREAS, Government Code section 8363 and Livingston Municipal Code section 1-20-9(B) 
authorize the City to make, issue and enforce orders, rules and regulations reasonably related to 
the protection of life and/or property, or the preservation of public order and safety; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Director of the City’s Disaster Council adopted an emergency order, dated March 
25, 2020 (the “Order”), which required residents to comply with the County Order and establishing 
penalties for violations of the Order; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council ratified the Order on March 26, 2020, in order to facilitate 
enforcement of the County Order and ensure residents self-isolate in their places of residence to 
the maximum extent feasible; and 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 2  

WHEREAS, Merced County has progressed into stage 2.5 of California’s Resiliency Roadmap; 
which has permitted certain sectors of the economy to reopen under modified restrictions; 
however, there are additional stages to progress through before complete reopening of all sectors 
of the economy; and 
 
WHEREAS, the most recent federal, state, and Merced County public health information indicates 
that the COVID-19 pandemic still presents serious and life threatening risks that jeopardizes the 
safety and health of persons and property within the territorial limits of the City. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Livingston hereby ratifies 
the continued existence of a Local Emergency in the City of Livingston due to the COVID-19 
pandemic, as originally declared by the City Council on March 17, 2020, through Resolution ______. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its 
passage and adoption. 
 
Passed and adopted this 16th day of June, 2020, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT:   
 
 
 

____________________________ 
    Gurpal Samra, Mayor 

                                                                                               of the City of Livingston 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and adopted at 
a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Livingston this 16th day of June, 2020.  
 
 

______________________________ 
                                                                                           Anthony Silva, City Clerk 

            of the City of Livingston 
 

 

 



1 

 

STAFF REPORT 
 

AGENDA ITEM:    Resolution Approving an Administrative Directive Regarding 
the Disposition of Surplus Property 

  
MEETING DATE:      June 16, 2020 
    
PREPARED BY: Chris Soria, Interim Chief of Police 
 
REVIEWED BY: Jose Antonio Ramirez, City Manager 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
Staff recommends that the City Council take the following actions: 
 

1. Approve of an Administrative Directive Regarding the Disposition of Surplus 
Property. 
 

 
BACKGROUND:   
 
Livingston Municipal Code Title 1, Chapter 12, provides that the City Manager is 
responsible for the general control of all surplus City property.  Under the City Manager’s 
delegation of authority, the City Manager may authorize any department of the City to 
dispose of surplus City property, so long as such disposal is done in accordance with the 
provisions of Chapter 12. 
 
At the direction and recommendation of the council, Staff has prepared an Administrative 
Directive Regarding the Disposition of Surplus Property, whereby a detailed list of property 
being disposed of, and the proposed final destination of such property, will be presented 
to the City Council, prior to surplus property being disposed of (Administrative Directive).  
The approval and implementation of the Administrative Directive will provide additional 
transparency to both the City Council and the public. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None. 
 
ATTACHMENTS    
1. Resolution approving of an administrative directive regarding the disposition of 

surplus property. 
2. Administrative Directive Regarding the Disposition of Surplus Property. 

 



Page 1   

RESOLUTION NO. 2020- 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LIVINGSTON APPROVING OF AN 
ADMINISTRATIVE DIRECTIVE REGARDING THE DISPOSITION OF SURPLUS 

PROPERTY 
 

WHEREAS, Chapter 12, or Article 1 of the Livingston Municipal Code provides for the procedures 
and regulations to be followed regarding the disposition of the City of Livingston’s surplus property; 
and 

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the City Council of the City of Livingston that it receive advanced 
notice when surplus property is planned to be transferred, sold, and/or disposed of by City staff; 
and 

WHEREAS, an Administrative Directive Regarding Surplus Property has been prepared whereby a 
detailed list of property being disposed of, and the proposed final destination of such property, will 
be presented to the City Council, prior to surplus property being disposed of. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Livingston hereby adopts 
the Administrative Directive Regarding Surplus Property, attached hereto as Exhibit A. 
 
Passed and adopted this 16th day of June, 2020, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT:   
 
 
 

____________________________ 
     Gurpal Samra, Mayor 
     of the City of Livingston 
 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and adopted at 
a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Livingston this 16th day of June, 2020.  
 
 

 
 

______________________________ 
Anthony Silva, City Clerk 
of the City of Livingston 

 

 

3541465.1  



Page 1   

EXHIBIT A 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE DIRECTIVE NO. 2020-01 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE DIRECTIVE REGARDING THE DISPOSITION OF SURPLUS 
PROPERTY  

 
 
All City staff are hereby directed to adhere to the following procedures when disposing of 
surplus property pursuant to Title 1, Chapter 12 of the Livingston Municipal Code: 
 
The City Council shall be presented with a list, detailing proposed surplus property to be 
disposed of, including surplus property that is proposed to be assigned, auctioned, and/or sold, 
before any surplus property may be disposed.  The list shall also include, the person and/or 
entity to which each surplus property is proposed to be disposed to. 
 
This Administrative Directive shall remain in effect, unless otherwise modified or rescinded by 
the City Council. 
 
 















STAFF REPORT 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution Continuing the 2020/21 Fiscal Year Budget and Authorizing the 

City Manager to Continue Making Required Expenditures to Meet Current 

or Immediate Financial Obligations until the 2020/21 Fiscal Year Budget is 

Adopted. 

 

MEETING DATE: June 16, 2020  

 

PREPARED BY: Jose Antonio Ramirez, City Manager 

 

REVIEWED BY: Jose Antonio Ramirez, City Manager 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Adopt Resolution No. 2020-___, continuing the 2020/21 fiscal year budget and authorizing the City 

Manager to continue making required expenditures to meet current or immediate financial obligations 

until the 2020/21 fiscal year budget is adopted. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Due to the Coronavirus pandemic City staff doesn’t have the fiscal year 2020/21 City budget prepared or 

thoroughly analyzed the City’s current financial situation. 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

It is necessary for the City to continue to incur required expenditures to meet financial obligations prior to 

the adoption of the fiscal year budget.  The attached Resolution will continue the 2020/21 fiscal year 

budget and authorize the City Manager to continue making payments for those financial obligations until 

the 2020/21 fiscal year budget is adopted. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

Required expenditures unknown at this time.  Common practice is to use prior year’s (current fiscal year 

2019/20) budget as a guide.  

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 

1. Resolution No. 2020- 

 

 






	Agenda Cover Sheet
	Item 2
	Item 3
	Item 4
	Item 5
	Item 6
	Item 7
	Item 8
	Item 9
	Item 10
	Item 11

